
Meeting of:  Council
Date: Wednesday, 22nd May, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Council Chamber - Town Hall, Rochdale, OL16 

1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  ELECTION OF MAYOR 

Councillor Brett will move and Councillor Dearnley will second the 
election of Councillor Sheerin as Mayor for the 2019/20 Municipal 
Year. 

4.  DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE 

Councillor Sheerin will sign the Declaration of Acceptance. 

5.  APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR 

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed will move and Councillor Emsley will second 
the election of Councillor Rashid as Deputy Mayor for the 2019/20 
Municipal Year. 

6.  MINUTES 3 - 8

To authorise the signing of the minutes of the meeting of the Council 
held on 26th March 2019. 

7.  CABINET PORTFOLIOS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 2019/20 9 - 13

Public Document Pack



For the Leader of the Council to nominate portfolio’s and 
appointments. 

8.  APPOINTMENT OF SHADOW PORTFOLIO HOLDER 2019/20 14 - 15

For the Leader of the Opposition to nominate appointments. 

9.  GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT COMMITTEE - ROLES 
AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

16 - 57

To approve arrangements for the Greater Manchester Transport 
Committee 

10.  COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS 2019/20 58 - 80

To consider the political balance of the Council and make 
appointments to Council Committees, Sub-Committees, Joint 
Committees, Outside Bodies and the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority. 

For further information about this meeting, please contact:

Peter Thompson, Governance and Committee Services
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 26th March 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Zaman (the Mayor in the Chair); Councillors Ali Ahmed, 
Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, Bamford, Biant, Blundell, 
Brett, Brosnan, Burke, Dale, Davidson, Dearnley, Dutton, Neil Emmott, Susan 
Emmott, Emsley, Gartside, Hartley, Heakin, Holly, Hornby, Howard, Hussain, 
Joinson, Kelly, Malcolm, Meredith, Nickson, Nolan, O’Rourke, Paolucci, Rana, 
Rashid, Rowbotham, Rush, Sheerin, Angela Smith, Susan Smith, Stott, 
Sullivan, Taylor, Wardle, Wazir, West, Donna Williams, Winkler and Zaheer.

OFFICERS:  S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), G. Hopper (Director of 
Children’s Services), J Searle (Director of Economy), N. Thornton (Director of 
Resources), A. Fallon (Director of Public Health), E. Newsome (Head of 
Governance), D. Brierley (Head of Communications), D. Beck, H. Lomax 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Ten members of the public.

MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS
55 The Mayor requested that the Council observe a period of silent 
reflection in memory of those all those people who tragically lost their lives 
during the recent terrorist atrocity in Christchurch, New Zealand.

APOLOGIES
56 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beswick, Boriss, 
Cocks, Martin, McCarthy, Mir, O’Neill, Robinson and Peter Williams

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
57 RESOLVED:

That the following declarations of interests be noted:-

Councillor Dearnley declared a personal interest in minute 60 (b), below – 
Threatened Closure of Heywood and Middleton Post Offices 

Councillor Brosnan declared a personal interest in minute 61, below – 
Members Quarterly Reports

MINUTES
58 RESOLVED
1. That the minutes of the meetings of the Council held 12th December 
2018 and 27th February 2019 be approved and signed as correct records.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
59 There were no submitted questions or petitions.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



NOTICES OF MOTION
a. 60 Effects of government Imposed Austerity

It was moved by Councillor Nolan and seconded by Councillor Rowbotham 
that:

“This council notes that following the Conservative/Liberal Democrat 
Government from 2010 and the solely Conservative Governments from 2015, 
Local Authorities have been devastated by cuts in the name of austerity. 
 
This council notes that over the past 10 years, Rochdale Council has been 
forced to make nearly £200 million worth of savings.
 
This council believes that Rochdale Council, and virtually every other council 
of every political persuasion have been forced to raise council tax and make 
difficult decisions on where to cut, for example being forced to borrow money 
to repair our roads and struggling to provide care services to our most 
vulnerable. 
 
This council belies that this is down to the government’s cruel austerity 
campaign alone.
 
This council notes that despite this - Rochdale Council has managed to keep 
afloat, keep our libraries and community centres open, repair our roads and 
deliver a quality Youth Service. 
 
The council accepts that residents have every reason to be angry with the 
effects of Government imposed austerity whilst wages have fallen in real 
terms by £500 since 2010. 
 
This council accepts that residents are angry that their local authority has had 
to cut on average £375 per person, per year. 
This council accepts that residents are angry that they’ve seen their overall 
quality of life decrease over the past 9 years.
 
This council believes that despite the Prime Minister’s claim that “austerity is 
over”, councils are facing further funding gap of £7.8 billion by 2025 just to 
keep services ‘standing still’. 
 
The council notes that Lord Gary Porter, the Conservative Chair of the Local 
Government Association, has said ‘Councils can no longer be expected to run 
our vital local services on a shoestring’.
 
This council notes that Northamptonshire County Council has already gone 
bust due to financial mismanagement at both national and local level, but 
more councils are predicted to collapse through no fault of their own without 
immediate emergency funding. 
 
This council believes that the Prime Minister’s pitiful offer to offset the effects 
of austerity was an insult to this council.
 

Page 4



This council requests that Chief Executive write to the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer Phillip Hammond, detailing the effects of austerity on the residents 
of Rochdale and demanding that this government reverses the cuts to local 
authorities.

An amendment to the Motion was moved by Councillor Dearnley and 
seconded by Councillor Sullivan that:

“This Council notes that over the past 10 years, Rochdale Council has been 
forced to make nearly £200million worth of savings. 

This Council notes that despite this, Rochdale Council has managed to keep 
afloat, keep our libraries and community centres open, repair our roads and 
deliver a quality Youth Service. 

The Council notes that Lord Gary Porter, the Conservative Chair of the Local 
Government Association has said “councils can no longer be expected to run 
our vital local services on a shoestring”. This Council supports the LGA 
campaign “Councils Can” to influence the forthcoming spending review. 

This Council requests that the Chief Executive and Political Group Leaders 
write to the Secretary of State to voice our united concerns at the growing 
risks of the loss of vital local services if the Government does not take action 
to secure the financial sustainability of Councils”

Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was declared to be LOST.

Upon being put to the vote, the Motion was declared to be carried and it was 
RESOLVED accordingly.

b. Threatened Closure of Heywood and Middleton Post Offices
It was be moved by Councillor Dutton and seconded by Councillor O’Rourke 
that:

“This council notes with disappointment the proposed closure of Heywood and 
Middleton Post Offices and their proposed movement into shared retail 
premises as part of wider post office franchising.

This council notes that reports by Consumer Focus (2012) and Citizens 
Advice (2016) have identified issues with the franchising of post offices to 
retail stores including poor accessibility for people with mobility impairments, 
longer queuing times, and inferior service and advice on products.

This council notes that franchising means the loss of jobs with good terms and 
conditions at the Post Office. Retail stores typically replace experienced post 
office staff with new employees in typically minimum wage part time roles. 
This is clearly bad for jobs in the local area and the Post Office workers

This Council believes that our post offices are a key asset for the community 
and the expertise and experience of staff there is invaluable.

Page 5



This Council believes that the relentless franchising and closure programme 
of the profit making Crown post Offices, points to a lack of vision rather than 
the plan for growth and innovation that is needed. 

This Council believes that the Government should therefore halt these 
closures and bring together stakeholders, including the CWU, and industry 
experts to develop a new strategy that safeguards the future of the Post office.

This council requests that the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council write 
to Government and the post office to outline this council’s opposition to the 
closure of Heywood and Middleton’s Post Offices and more generally to raise 
concern about the apparent managed decline of the post office network and 
the impact on high streets across the UK as well as the service in the 
franchised premises, and the poor quality jobs that result.

This council also calls on the Communities Regeneration and Environment 
Scrutiny Committee to meet with retailers and the Post Office to urge a stop to 
the planned franchise.”

Upon being put to the vote, the Motion was declared to be carried and it was 
RESOLVED accordingly.

MEMBERS QUARTERLY REPORTS
61 Members presented their Quarterly Reports responding to questions 
and remarks from Members of the Council:-

 The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Finance 
 The Cabinet Member for Planning, Development and Housing 
 The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 
 The Cabinet Member for Environment 
 The Cabinet Member for Resources 
 The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Business and Skills 
 The Cabinet Member for Children's Services 
 The Cabinet Member for Adult Care 
 The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture 
 The Chair of Heywood Township Committee 
 The Chair of Middleton Township Committee 
 The Chair of Pennines Township Committee 
 The Chair of Rochdale Township Committee 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee report of the Chairs 
 Update on the work of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority

RESOLVED:
That the reports be noted.

COUNCIL TAX DISCOUNT FOR SPECIAL CONSTABLES
62 The Council considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer that 
sought approval to provide a 50% discount from the payment of Council Tax 
to Special Constables who live and serve in the Borough.

Page 6



RESOLVED
1. The Council approves the proposal to provide a 50% discount to 
Special Constables who live and serve in the Borough from the payment of 
Council Tax.
2. The Council approves the creation of a Section 13A (Local Government 
Finance Act 1992) policy and procedure to include the discount above.

PROPOSED CHANGES TO TOWNSHIPS
63 The Council considered a report of the Assistant Director (Information, 
Customers) which advised Members that in January 2018, Township Chairs 
and a cross-party group of Elected Members had formed a working group to 
look at how the Council engaged with local communities, and how Townships 
operate.  Members of the Townships Review Steering Group were appointed 
by Group Leaders.

The group was facilitated by Sir Steve Houghton, Leader of Barnsley Council, 
and officers from the Local Government Association. The Township 
Committees were consulted on the panel’s recommendations at their 
meetings in October 2018.

The feedback, received included a number of proposed changes to future 
governance arrangements which need the approval of Council, including the 
restructure of the Rochdale Township Committee and revised Terms of 
Reference for the Township Committees

RESOLVED

1. The restructure of Rochdale Township into Rochdale North Township 
and Rochdale South Township as follows: Rochdale North (comprising 
Central Rochdale, Healey, norden and Spotland and  Falinge Wards) and 
Rochdale South (comprising Balderstone and Kirkholt, Bamford, Castleton, 
Kingsway and Milkstone and Deeplish wards), be approved;
2. The relevant capital and revenue budgets for Rochdale Township be 
split  based on population;
3. The creation of an additional Township Chair with associated Special 
Responsibility Allowance, approved;
4. Neighbourhood and partnership delivery models be aligned to the 
amended Rochdale Township areas wherever possible;
5. The Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce) be 
authorised to amend the Constitution to reflect revised Terms of Reference for 
Township Committees to include:
a. Recognising the different needs and priorities across Townships and 
neighbourhoods;
b. Contributions to the health and social care agenda on a local level;
c. To aid in the development of community resilience and co-creation of 
services within communities.

REFRAMING HEALTH AND WELLBEING IN THE CONTEXT OF PUBLIC 
SERVICE REFORM

Page 7



64 The Council considered a report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) which advised Members that following a 
review of the governance arrangements of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board (HWBB) a number of issues had been reported as requiring 
revision.  A number of additional factors compounded the need to 
reflect on the effectiveness and future operation of the HWBB, 
including: the Greater Manchester Public Service Reform agenda, place 
based and integrated working footprints and the disengagement of key 
partners from the HWBB.

The Health and Wellbeing Board on 12th March 2019 had delegated work 
on frequency of meetings, membership and other technical issues to 
Officers in consultation with the HWBB Chair to finalise.

It was suggested that a Strategic partnership Board be established to 
replace the HWBB and draft terms of reference were appended to the 
submitted report.

RESOLVED
1. The Council approves the creation of the Strategic Partnership 

Board, replacing the Health and Wellbeing Board with effect from 
the 2019/20 Municipal Year.

2. The Council approves the draft terms of reference for the Strategic 
Partnership Board.

3. The Council delegates any additional amendments to the terms of 
reference to the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing in 
consultation with the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

VOTE OF THANKS
65 The Council noted that this would be the last meeting of the Council for 
Councillor Biant and Councillor Brosnan, the Mayor - Councillor Zaman and 
Members of the Council recorded their thanks and appreciation to them. 

Members of the Council recorded their thanks and appreciation for the 
services of Councillor Zaman as Mayor of the Borough for the 2018/19 
Municipal Year in both his Civic role and as Chair of the Council.

Page 8



Report to Council

Date of Meeting 22nd May 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document Public 

Cabinet Portfolios and Responsibilities 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report notifies Council of the Leader’s appointment of Cabinet Members 
and Assistants to portfolio holders for the 2019/20 Municipal Year.

Recommendation

2. That Council receives for information, details of the Leaders’ appointments to 
Cabinet positions, the allocation of portfolios to Cabinet Members and the 
appointment of Assistants to Portfolio holders as follows:

Portfolio Cabinet Member 
(Portfolio Holder)

Assistant to Portfolio 
Holder

Finance Leader of the Council, 
Councillor Allen Brett

Councillor Faisal Rana

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Resources 

Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor John Hartley

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Health & Wellbeing

Councillor Sara 
Rowbotham

Councillor Wendy 
Cocks

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Business, 
Skills and Employment

Councillor John 
Blundell

Councillor Shah Wazir

Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community and Culture

Councillor Janet 
Emsley

Councillor Susan Smith

Cabinet Member for 
Environment

Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Ali Ahmed

Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services

Councillor Kieran 
Heakin

Councillor Rachel 
Massey

Cabinet Member for Councillor Iftikhar Councillor Pat Dale

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Adult Care Ahmed
Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Development 
and Housing

Councillor Wardle Councillor Linda 
Robinson

That the Leader re-affirms the joint arrangements and delegation of executive 
functions to individual cabinet members, Township Committees and Officers 
as set out in Part 3 (Scheme of Delegation) of the Council’s Constitution.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Leader is able to modify Cabinet responsibilities and undertakes to notify 
Council of any such changes

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

The Council has adopted a Leader and Cabinet Governance model.  The 
Leader, being appointed for a period of 4 years, holds the responsibility for 
determining the size and membership of their Cabinet and the roles that 
individual cabinet members may undertake, including any delegations that are 
specific to them.

Councillor Allen Brett was appointed as the Leader of the Council for a period 
of 4 years on 13th December 2017.  All Executive functions are vested in the 
Leader and it is their responsibility to determine how such functions shall be 
undertaken.  Council is provided with this information on an annual basis.

The Leader has made some minor changes to the remit of portfolios for the 
2018/19 Municipal Year.  These are detailed in appendix 1 to the report.

Alternatives Considered

None – this is a matter for the Leader to determine. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.

5.1

The Members Allowance Scheme as approved by the Council on 14th 
December 2016.  The scheme contains special responsibility allowances for 
the Leader, Cabinet Members and Assistants to Portfolio Holders.

Special responsibility allowances will be met from within existing budgets

Risk and Policy Implications

None associated with this report6.

Page 10



Consultation

7. None – this is a matter for the Leader to determine

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None n/a

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 11



Portfolios Responsibilities Cab Member Assistant Directorates Lead Officers Movements 

 
Leader and 
Finance

Finance, Special Projects, 
GMCA/AGMA, Greater Manchester 
Relationships and Communications. 

Allen Brett Faisal Rana Resources, 

Economy

NT

JS

 
Regeneration, 
Business, Skills 
& Employment

Regeneration, Strategic Housing, RDA, 
Jobs, Business and Intelligence 
Services, Skills and Employment and 
Economic Growth.

John Blundell Shah Wazir Economy JS In: Strategic Housing

Resources
ICT, Legal, Governance, Human 
Resources, Payroll, Corporate Policy, 
Health & Safety.

Daalat Ali John Hartley Neighbourhoods

Resources 

MW 

NT

Planning, 
Development & 
Housing 

Planning, Building Control, Strategic 
Estates & Assets, Sustainability/Low 
Carbon, Strategic Development, RBH 
Client.

Carol Wardle Linda 
Robinson

Economy

Neighbourhood

JS

MW 

Out: Strategic Housing, 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & 
Culture

Townships, Libraries, Community 
Safety, Coroners & Registrars 
Voluntary Sector, Community 
Cohesion, Community Centres, 
Culture, Link for Life Client, Events. 

Janet Emsley Susan Smith  Neighbourhoods

Public Health & 
Wellbeing 

MW

AF

In: Coroners & 
Registrars

P
age 12



 

Environment Highways, Environmental 
Management, Street Lighting Client, 
Facilities Management, Property 
Services. 

Neil Emmott Ali Ahmed Neighbourhoods MW Out: Coroners & 
Registrars 

Children ‘s 
Services

.Education, Children’s Social Care, 
Children’s Safeguarding, Schools and 
Joint Commissioning – Children. 

Kieran Heakin Rachel 
Massey 

Children’s 
Services 

GH

Adult Care Adult Safeguarding, Adult Social Care, 
Joint Commissioning and Care 
Strategy, Adult Care Market Strategy. 

Iftikhar Ahmed Pat Dale Adult Care SB Out: Greater 
Manchester Health and 
Social Care Devolution

Health and 
Wellbeing

Public Health, Public Protection, 
Health & Wellbeing Board, ICB, Drugs 
& Alcohol Commissioning, Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care 
Devolution  .

Sarah 
Rowbotham 

Wendy Cocks Public Health & 
Wellbeing 

SMC

AF

In: Greater Manchester 
Health and Social Care 
Devolution

P
age 13



Report to Council

Date of Meeting 22nd May 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document Public 

Appointment of Shadow Portfolio Holders 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. The report sets out the nominations for the opposition portfolio spokespersons 
for the 2019/20 Municipal Year

Recommendation

2
.

That approval is given to the nominations to the Shadow Portfolio 
Spokespersons for the 2019/20 Municipal Year as follows:

Portfolio Shadow Portfolio Spokesperson
Finance Councillor Mike Holly
Resources Councillor James Gartside
Planning, Development & Housing Councillor Rina Paolucci-Escobar
Regeneration, Business Skills and 
Employment

Councillor Angela Smith

Neighbourhoods, Community & Culture Councillor John Taylor
Environment Councillor Peter Winkler
Children’s Services Councillor Pat Sullivan
Adult Care Councillor Jane Howard
Health & Wellbeing Councillor Ashley Dearnley 

Reason for Recommendation

3. Council approval is required to appoint to the positions.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Following the adoption of the Leader and Cabinet decision making structure, 
the Council has annually appointed opposition shadow portfolio 
spokespersons which relate to each Cabinet portfolio

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



Alternatives Considered

None 

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no costs associated with the appointment of Shadow Portfolio.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk issues for Council to consider.  Appointments are 
made in accordance with the Council’s Constitutional provisions

6.

Consultation

7. None 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None Not applicable

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 15



Report to Council

Date of Meeting 22nd May 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document Public

Greater Manchester Transport Committee - Roles and Responsibilities

Executive Summary

1. This report outlines the current Greater Manchester (GM) transport 
governance arrangements.  In the context of the Devolution Agreement and 
specifically the GMCA Transport Order 3, it then presents some broad revised 
terms of reference for a reconstituted GM Transport Committee, options for its 
structure, responsibilities and examples of how it might work in practice.

Recommendation
1. To approve the establishment of the new GM Transport Committee as a 

joint committee of the 10 districts, GMCA and Mayor.
2. To approve the Terms of Reference and Operating Agreement for the 

Committee as set out in Schedule 1 of the report.
3. To delegate the functions as set out in the Terms of Reference to the 

Transport Committee.
4 To appoint one Member, Councillor Burke and one substitute Member, 

Councillor Shah Wazir to the Transport Committee for 2019/2020.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To ensure that Rochdale Borough Council is represented on the Greater 
Manchester Transport Committee 

Key Points for Consideration

3.1The report is proposing a structure for GM transport governance. 
Appendix 1 provides further information on the operation of the 
Committee.

3.2The Mayor and GMCA: are to continue to undertake all strategic 
decision-making in relation to policy, strategy (LTP), funding and 
scheme decision-making.  

Page 16

Agenda Item 9



3.3The new joint Transport Committee: refocused role as transport user 
champion – performance monitoring/management of all modes and 
highway network, holding operators to account, oversight on delivery 
(eg capital and other schemes) and ensuring the integration of transport 
policy within the parameters set by the Local Transport Plan (ie 
Transport Strategy 2040) and existing policy.  A well briefed and 
informed Committee will be in a strong position to make 
recommendations to the Mayor, GMCA and Districts, as appropriate. 

3.4Greater Manchester Scrutiny: Scrutiny of Mayoral, GMCA and 
Transport Committee decisions as above, including wider integration 
with spatial issues, housing, environment, is currently undertaken by 
the Housing, Planning & Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. Transport budget issues are scrutinised by the Corporate 
Issues & Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Alternatives Considered

The operating arrangements for the Greater Manchester Transport Committee 
are defined by the Devolution Agreement and GMCA Transport Order 3, 
therefore no alternatives are able to be considered. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Not applicable

Risk and Policy Implications

Not applicable6.

Consultation

7. Each local authority in Greater Manchester has been consulted on the 
proposals for a Greater Manchester Transport Committee

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 17



Strategic Policy Context 

1.1 Greater Manchester (GM) has approached its growth and reform agenda from the principle 
of place-based integration of policy development and service delivery.  This is echoed by 
GM’s 2040 Transport Strategy, which promotes the development of one integrated 
transport system for the city-region that will maximize the impact of our transport assets 
in support of GM’s economic, social and environmental ambitions.   

1.2 Our ambition for integrated transport in support of place and people will be most efficiently 
achieved if managed by an accountable, efficient and well-informed governance system.  
Furthermore, transport infrastructure and services need to be managed and co-ordinated 
in a manner that directly supports GM’s wider public policy agendas, such as spatial 
planning, health and housing, as set out in the Greater Manchester Strategy. 

1.3 Given the long development periods required for transformative infrastructure and new 
regulatory structures to be delivered, any new system will need to provide stable 
governance to foster a long-term consensus over transport investment and policy. 

1.4 To this extent then, it will be vital that the exercise of transport powers across all modes is 
undertaken collectively as far as is possible by the Mayor, GMCA and Districts acting in 
concert, bringing together their respective transport functions and budgets so they can be 
co-ordinated in a coherent manner. 

1.5 The Transport Committee, as a joint committee comprising members from all of these 
bodies, has an important role to play as part of this, particularly in relation to operational 
oversight and performance monitoring of all transport modes (including highways) and 
scheme delivery

1.6 A joint committee of the GMCA, Mayor and District Councils enables the appropriate 
functions to be delegated from all of these bodies, equipping one body with broad and 
balanced elected member representation from across Greater Manchester to assess all 
modes of transport as a whole.  

1.7 Accordingly, what is proposed as the basic structure for GM transport governance is as 
follows.  

 Mayor and GMCA: to continue to undertake all strategic decision-making in relation 
to policy, strategy (LTP), funding and scheme decision-making.  

 New joint Transport Committee: refocused role as transport user champion – 
performance monitoring / management of all modes and highway network, holding 

Page 18



2

operators to account, oversight on delivery (eg capital and other schemes) and 
ensuring the integration of transport policy within the parameters set by the Local 
Transport Plan (ie Transport Strategy 2040) and existing policy.  A well briefed and 
informed Committee will be in a strong position to make recommendations to the 
Mayor, GMCA and Districts, as appropriate 

 Greater Manchester Scrutiny: Scrutiny of Mayoral, GMCA and Transport 
Committee decisions as above, including wider integration with spatial issues, 
housing, environment, is currently undertaken by the Housing, Planning & 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Transport budget issues are 
scrutinised by the Corporate Issues & Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

1.8 The Transport Committee will continue to undertake decisions in relation to supported bus 
services, within agreed policy and budgets.  This will require the bus functions that Order 3 
transfers from the GMCA to the Mayor to be delegated to the new Transport Committee. 

1.9 The proposed approach to transport governance outlined above will also provide greater 
clarity for the GM Scrutiny Committees, and in particular the Housing, Planning and 
Environment Scrutiny Committee, which includes transport in its remit, in undertaking their 
scrutiny, functions.  

1.10 This will enable elected members, be they decision-makers or those with a scrutiny role, to 
be clear about their role and that of the bodies they are appointed to, as well as 
understanding the roles of related bodies.  This is increasingly important when elected 
members may have multiple and overlapping roles, for example serving on a Licensing 
Panel and the Transport Committee. 

1.11 The clearer distinction between where major transport decisions are taken (GMCA and 
Mayor), and where transport performance and operational delivery and integration is 
monitored and operators are held to account (Transport Committee), will help ensure that 
Scrutiny processes and oversight at the city-region level can be exercised in an efficient 
manner that avoids duplication.   

2 Current Transport Governance Arrangements

2.1 The diagram below shows the primary transport decision-making bodies in GM, alongside 
the various advisory and scrutiny bodies.

Page 19



3

2.2 The above structures exist within a much broader set of GM governance arrangements, all 
of which are underpinned by GM-wide officer networks to support work programmes.  
TfGM’s board structure also provides for Non-Executive Directors, who act in an advisory 
capacity.  All TfGM Board appointments are made by GMCA. 

2.3 The number and membership of the current Transport for Greater Manchester Committee 
was modelled on the GM Integrated Transport Authority, which was disestablished in 2011 
with its functions, powers and responsibilities passed to the GMCA. 

2.4 The existing terms of reference of the TfGMC Committee do make reference to it making 
recommendations to GMCA, for example in relation to formulating general policies, 
considering proposals to promote or oppose Bills, eTransport Committee.  It is proposed to 
retain this broad scope of activities.

3 New Joint Transport committee – Revised Membership

3.1 There has been significant change to GM governance since 2011, when the existing 
Transport for Greater Manchester Committee was established. In that time period, the 
mayoral combined authority has been established, major reforms of scrutiny arrangements 
and the former waste, fire and police authorities undertaken, and more recently the 
confirmation of GM Order 3 (which was agreed by all of the Districts) has specific 
implications for transport governance. 

Page 20



4

3.2 GM Order 3 represents a further step on the journey to equip GM with more robust 
governance arrangements better able to utilise existing and new powers and functions 
devolved to GM, and achieve the economic, social and environmental objectives in the GM 
Strategy.  

3.3 As set out above these arrangements provide for the joining-up of the GM public policy 
agenda, within which transport is an essential supporting component, for example in 
relation to spatial planning, housing, skills and health.  

3.4 The Order makes a series of changes, including conferring all operational bus powers on 
the Mayor, enables the Mayor to enter into joint arrangements with the GMCA and 
Districts in relation to transport functions and makes provision for a new joint Transport 
Committee.

3.5 All GM local authorities consented to the new Order in January 2019.  In terms of 
membership arrangements, the Order states :

1.‘—(1) Where a joint transport committee is established in accordance with article 6 the 
members of the joint transport committee must be appointed in accordance with 
paragraphs (2) to (5).

(2) The members appointed by the GMCA must be members or substitute members 
of that authority or members of the constituent councils.

(3) The members appointed by the constituent councils must be members of those 
councils.

(4) The members appointed by the Mayor must be members of the GMCA or of the 
constituent councils.

(5) In appointing members to the joint transport committee—
(a) the Mayor, the GMCA and the constituent councils must ensure that—

(i) the number of members of the committee does not exceed twenty three;
(ii) members are appointed to act as members of the joint transport committee 

in the absence of the members appointed under paragraph (1) (“substitute 
committee members”); and

(b) the GMCA and the constituent councils must ensure that the members of the 
committee appointed from among the members of the GMCA and the constituent 
councils, and any substitute committee members acting in place of those members, 
taken as a whole reflect so far as reasonably practicable the balance of political parties 
for the time being prevailing among members of the constituent councils.

3.6 In terms of constituting the new Joint Transport Committee, ensuring political, and 
geographical balance, the following is recommended:-

 Districts appoint to 11 places on the Joint Committee, 

Page 21



5

 The CA to appoint to one place on the Joint Committee,

 The Mayor to be a member of the Joint Committee and

 The remaining 10 members are appointed by Mayor and will be made to ensure political 
balance across GM is represented. 

 That the committee shall select and recommend to the Mayor its own Chair 

3.7 The Operating Agreement has been amended to reflect the Order and sets out how those 
appointments will be made. Clause 3.10 of the Agreement states that the appointments 
made by the Mayor to the 10 remaining places will reflect the wishes of the relevant 
political group as to the members to be appointed to the Committee allocated to that 
political group. This would mean that, if the political balance across GM remains the same 
as it is prior to the May 2019 local elections the 10 places would be made up of 4 labour 
members, 4 Conservative members and 2 Liberal Democrats. The three political parties will 
inform the Mayor of their preferences and they will be appointed by the Mayor. 

4 Revised Terms of Reference for the Transport Committee 

4.1 The proposed Terms of Reference for the Committee are included in the Operating 
Agreement ( Schedule 1). They set out the key areas of work for the Committee and the 
delegations from the Mayor, GMCA and the districts.  The Terms of Reference more 
accurately reflect the proposed role of the Committee and do not make any changes to the 
delegations from the Districts.

4.2 The three key areas of work for the new joint transport committee, which will comprise 
representatives from each District, the GMCA and the Mayor, will be to ensure:  

 Accountability: active and regular monitoring of the performance of the transport 
network, including the highway network (including the operation of the GM Road 
Activities Permit Scheme, road safety activities, eTransport Committee) as well as 
all public transport modes.  This role will include holding service operators, TfGM, 
highway authorities and infrastructure providers to public account, and 

 Implementation: oversee the delivery of agreed Local Transport Plan 
commitments.  This includes the active oversight of the transport capital 
programme, and as noted above, decisions over subsidised bus services network to 
be made within the context of policy and budgets set by the Mayor and the GMCA 
as appropriate, and

 Policy Development: undertake policy development on specific issues, as may be 
directed by the Mayor and / or the GMCA.

Page 22



6

4.3 With regard to decisions about subsidised bus services, it is proposed that the new 
Transport Committee undertakes this function, given the local nature of such decision-
making, within the policy context and funding as determined by the Mayor.  

4.4 Specific policy development work that the Committee was asked to explore by the GMCA, 
the Mayor or the Districts could be undertaken by task and finish groups, comprising an 
appropriate selection of Transport Committee members.  This group would undertake the 
policy development process outside of formal Committee meetings, supported by TfGM as 
appropriate, and provide recommendations for consideration by the whole Committee 
before subsequent presentation to the GMCA or the Mayor.

5. Operating Agreement

5.1 The first Operating Agreement was entered into between GMCA and the districts in 2011. 
It set out how the Committee would be appointed to, the Terms of Reference of the 
Committee, and other provisions relating to Transport Protocols, funding and scrutiny 
arrangements.

5.2 The proposed amendments update the membership and appointment process; include the 
Mayor as a signatory as he now has specific transport powers; deletes the references to a 
joint scrutiny committee  as the CA now has Scrutiny functions; retains the same funding 
provisions and  the Rules of Procedure.

6. Transport Committee training for members and work programme 

6.1 If the proposals for the new committee are approved it is recommended that officers are 
asked to organise and provide training for new members prior to its first meeting. This can 
include member involvement in developing and agreeing the Committee’s overall work 
programme.

6.2 The following section elaborates, through examples, how a revised Transport Committee 
might work in practice, to better support the transport agenda being pursued by the Mayor, 
GMCA and GM local authorities to help cement an effective and long term consensus.

Example One: The Transport Committee is informed of large scale bus de-registrations 
from the commercial network.  

6.3 The standard report on changes to the bus network is received by the Transport 
Committee, and members’ comments and the operator’s response noted.  Transport 
Committee informs the Mayor’s Transport Board, such that the Mayor can seek 
explanations or action at a more senior level.  The issue may also be raised at GMCA, to the 
extent that any service withdrawals requiring replacement will impact significantly on the 
Subsidised Bus budget.  The Transport Committee may also wish to inform the Housing, 
Planning & Environment Scrutiny Committee, either formally or otherwise, to provide 
them with reassurance that the issue is being addressed.

Page 23



7

Example Two: Tracking performance and patronage of public transport network.  

6.4 Regular, comparable and clear performance monitoring reports to Transport Committee.  
Operators attend, and are held to account for service delivery by members.  Consistently 
inadequate performance that is beyond the remit or capacity of TfGMC to secure 
improvements to be referred to Mayor’s Transport Board and TfN (if relating to rail).

Example Three: Policy Reviews  

6.5 Transport policy and strategy decisions are primarily for the Mayor, subject to the GMCA’s 
agreement.  For a formal revision of the LTP, a draft would be submitted by the mayor and 
would require approval by seven GMCA members in order to go forward to public 
consultation, then at least eight would be required to approve the post-consultation final 
version. 

6.6 With regard to less significant transport strategy or policy measures, there may be a role 
for Transport Committee to consider and recommend any changes, if requested by the 
Mayor/GMCA, and then present its recommendations to GMCA. Examples might include 
revisions to School Bus policy, Metrolink bylaws, use of bus lanes.

Recommendations

The recommendations appear on the front page of the report.

 

Page 24



8

Schedule 1
OPERATING AGREEMENT

 
This Agreement is made on[             ] 2019

between: 
 
(1) Greater Manchester Combined Authority (“the GMCA”) 

and 

(2)   The Mayor for the area of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (“the Mayor”)
 
and 
 
(3) The Borough Council of Bolton, Bury Metropolitan Borough Council, The Council of 

the City of Manchester, Oldham Borough Council, Rochdale Metropolitan Borough 
Council, Salford City Council, The Metropolitan Borough Council of Stockport, 
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council, Trafford Metropolitan Borough Council, 
Wigan Borough Council (“the Constituent Councils”) 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
(A) On 1st April 2011 the GMCA was established as a Combined Authority for the 

combined area and the Greater Manchester Integrated Transport Area was dissolved 
and the ITA abolished. 

 
(B) The functions of the GMCA are those functions conferred or imposed on it, or 

delegated to it, by the Greater Manchester (Combined Authority) Order 2011 (S.I.  , 
(“the GMCA Order”) or by any other enactment, including all the transport functions 
of the former Greater Manchester Integrated Transport Authority (the “GMITA”) 
which transferred to the GMCA on the abolition of the GMITA.

(C) The Constituent Councils were established as local authorities by the Local 
Government Act 1972 with all the functions of a metropolitan district council, and in 
particular the Constituent Councils are the local highway authority and local traffic 
authority for their area.
 

(D) The functions of the GMCA conferred on it by the GMCA Order include those 
transport functions of the Constituent Councils delegated to the GMCA by article 8 
of the 2011 Order.

Page 25



9

(E) Pursuant to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (Election of Mayor with 
Police and Crime Commissioner Functions Order 2016 (SI 2016/448) provision was 
made for the election of a Mayor for the GMCA Area (and the GMCA became a 
“mayoral combined authority”).  Pursuant to section 107D (Functions of mayors: 
general) of the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 
(the “LDEDCA”) the Secretary of State may by order make provision for any function 
of  mayoral combined authority to be a function exercisable only by the Mayor 
(“Mayoral Functions”).  

(F) On 4 April 2019 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (Functions and 
Amendment) Order 2019 (SI 2019/793) (the “GMCA Transport Order”) came into 
force.  Pursuant to article 4 of the GMCA Transport Order, the transport functions of 
the GMCA specified in Schedule 1 of the GMCA Transport Order are general 
functions exercisable only by the Mayor (“Mayoral Transport Functions”).

(G) Pursuant to Part 3, articles 6 to 9 (inclusive) of the GMCA Transport Order provision 
was made for the Mayor to enter into arrangements jointly with the GMCA and with 
the Constituent Councils in accordance with section 101(5) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 for the discharge of the Mayoral Transport Functions which are listed at 
Schedule 2 GMCA Transport Order (the “Joint Transport Committee”, hereinafter 
referred to as “GM Transport Committee”).  

(H) Part 3, articles 6 to 9 (inclusive) of the GMCA Transport Order sets out the statutory 
requirements in relation to membership of the GM Transport Committee and voting 
arrangements for any questions to be decided by the GM Transport Committee.

 
(I) The Parties wish to co-operate with each other in the exercise of their functions and 

in particular their transport functions and have entered into this Agreement in order 
to facilitate this co-operation and the operation of the GM Transport Committee.  

 
 
 
 

Page 26



10

THIS AGREEMENT witnesses as follows: 
 
1. Definitions 
 
 In this Agreement – 

1.1 Constituent Councils” mean the metropolitan district councils for the local 
government areas of Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Salford, 
Stockport, Tameside, Trafford, and Wigan. 

 

1.2 “GMCA Order” means the Greater Manchester Combined Authority Order 2011. 

1.3 “the GM Transport Committee” means the Greater Manchester Transport 
Committee being a joint committee established by the Parties pursuant to the GMCA 
Transport Order.

1.4 “the GMCA Transport Order” means The Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
(Functions and Amendment) Order 2019.

1.5 “the LDEDCA 2009” means the Local Democracy, Economic Development and 
Construction Act 2009.

1.6 “the LGA 1972” means the Local Government Act 1972.

1.7 “the LGA 2000” means the Local Government Act 2000.
 
 

1.8 “the LGHA 1989” means the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

1.9       “the Mayor” means the person elected as the Mayor of the GMCA 
pursuant to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (Election of Mayor with 
Police and Crime Commissioner Functions Order 2016 (SI 2016/448)

1.10 “the 2012 Regulations” means the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the 
Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012. 

 
1.11 “the Parties” mean the GMCA, the Mayorand the Constituent Councils. 
 
1.12 “the Relevant Date” in relation to a payment for a financial year means 30th June 

in the financial year which commenced two years previously. 
 

Page 27



11

1.13 “the Secretary” means such person as shall be appointed by the GMCA to discharge 
the role of Secretary on behalf of the GM Transport Committee..  

 
1.14 “the TfGMC” means the Transport for Greater Manchester Committee being a joint 

committee established by the Parties. 
 
1.15 “the TfGM” means Transport for Greater Manchester being the executive body of 

GMCA for the purposes of Part 5 of the Local Transport Act 2008 and Part 6 of the 
LDEDCA 2009. 

  
 
2. Interpretation 
 
2.1 Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation of this 

Agreement; 
 
2.2 The Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in full 

in the body of this Agreement.  Any reference to this Agreement includes the 
Schedules. 

 
2.3 Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural 

and in the plural shall include the singular. 
 
2.4 A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as amended, 

extended or re-enacted from time to time. 
 
2.5 A reference to a statute or statutory provision shall include all subordinate legislation 

made from time to time. 
 
2.6 A reference to “this Agreement” or to any other agreement or document referred to 

in this Agreement is a reference to this Agreement or such other document or 
agreement as varied from time to time. 

 
2.7 References to clauses and Schedules are to the Clauses and Schedules of this 

Agreement and references to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the relevant Schedule. 
 
2.8 No person other than a party to this Agreement shall have any rights to enforce any 

term of this Agreement. 
 
2.9 This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its 

subject matter or formation shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the law of England and Wales. 

 

Page 28



12

2.10 If any court or competent authority finds that any provision of this Agreement (or 
part of any provision) is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, that provision or part-
provision shall, to the extent required, be deemed to be deleted, and the validity and 
enforceability of the other provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected. 

3. Establishment of GM Transport Committee  
 
3.1 Pursuant to Section 101(5) of the LGA 1972, Section 20 of the LGA 2000, Regulations 

3,4, 11 and 12 of the 2000 Regulations and articles 6, 7, 8 and 9 of the GMCA 
Transport Order,, the Parties agree to enter into arrangements to discharge certain 
of their functions relating to transport jointly and for this purpose to establish a joint 
committee to be called the Greater Manchester Transport Committee (the “GM 
Transport Committee”).  The Mayoral Transport Functions which the Mayor may 
decide to arrange to be discharged by the GM Transport Committee are those listed 
in Schedule 2 of the GM Transport Order.

3.2 Pursuant to article 5(a)(i) of the GM Transport Order, the number of members of the 
GM Transport Committee shall not exceed 23.  

 
3.3 Each Constituent Council (apart from Manchester City Council) shall appoint one of 

their elected members to be members of GM Transport Committee.  Manchester 
City Council shall appoint two of their elected members to be members of the GM 
Transport Committee.  

3.4 Each of the Constituent Councils are expected to appoint their district’s executive 
member with responsibility for transport to be a member of the GM Transport 
Committee.

3.5 Pursuant to article 5(a)(ii) of the GM Transport Order, each Constituent Council 
(apart from Manchester City Council) shall appoint one of their elected members to 
act as substitute member of the GM Transport Committee in the absence of the 
member appointed in accordance with clause 3.3 above.  Manchester City Council is 
expected to appoint two of their elected members to act as substitute members of 
the GM Transport Committee in the absence of the members appointed in 
accordance with clause 3.3 above.

3.6 The GMCA will appoint one member of the GMCA to be a member of the GM 
Transport Committee.  

3.7 Pursuant to article 5(a)(ii) of the GM Transport Order, the GMCA will appoint one 
member of the GMCA to act as substitute member of the GM Transport Committee 
in the absence of the member appointed in accordance with clause 3.6 above.  

Page 29



13

3.8 The Mayor will be a member of the GM Transport Committee. 

3.9 Pursuant to article 5(a)(ii) of the GM Transport Order, the Mayor will appoint one 
member of the GMCA to act as substitute member of the GM Transport Committee 
in the Mayor’s absence.

3.10 The Mayor will appoint ten additional members of the GM Transport Committee, 
comprising one elected member of each of the Constituent Councils.  The 
appointments to the GM Transport Committee made by the Mayor under this clause 
3.10 will be made so as to ensure that the members of the GM Transport Committee, 
taken as a whole, reflect as far as reasonably practicable the balance of political 
parties for the time being prevailing among the Constituent Councils when taken 
together as required by article 5(b) of the GM Transport Order.  The appointments 
to the GM Transport Committee made by the Mayor under this clause 3.10 will 
reflect the wishes of the relevant political group as to the members to be appointed 
to any seat on the GM Transport Committee allocated to that political group.

3.11 Pursuant to article 5(a)(ii) of the GM Transport Order, the GMCA will appoint elected 
members of the Constituent Councils to act as substitute members of the GM 
Transport Committee in the absence of the members appointed in accordance with 
clause 3.10 above.

3.12. Pursuant to article 7(6) of the GM Transport Order, questions relating to the 
apportionment of membership under clause 3.10 require a unanimous vote in favour 
by all members, or substitute committee members acting in place of those members, 
of the GMCA to be carried.

4. Terms of Reference of the GM Transport Committee  

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
 
Terms of Reference  

1. Overview  

The Transport Committee, as a joint committee of the ten Greater Manchester district 
councils (‘the Constituent Councils’), the GMCA and the Mayor, brings together the 
principal local transport decision-making bodies. 
 
The primary role of the Transport Committee is not to replicate strategic decision-making 
functions, but to ensure that through its work, those bodies are able to make informed and 
co-ordinated decisions by being fully informed about the operation and performance of the 

Page 30



14

transport system, its individual modes and the infrastructure it relies on, including the Key 
Route Network.  

It also has an important role in helping shape the development of transport strategy and 
policies, and in advising the GMCA and the Mayor on specific transport issues, as directed 
by them. In relation to bus services, the Transport Committee will undertake the function 
of making decisions in relation to the supported bus network, which has been delegated by 
the Mayor.

In summary the three key areas of work for the Transport Committee will be to ensure:  

 Accountability: active and regular monitoring of the performance of the transport 
network, including the Key Route Network, the operation of the GM Road Activities 
Permit Scheme, road safety activities, etc as well as all public transport modes.  This 
role will include holding service operators, TfGM, highway authorities and transport 
infrastructure providers to public account, and to recommend appropriate action as 
appropriate;

 Implementation: oversee the delivery of agreed Local Transport Plan commitments.  
This includes the active oversight of the transport capital programme, and decisions 
over supported bus services network to be made within the context of policy and 
budgets set by the Mayor and the GMCA as appropriate; and

 Policy Development: undertake policy development on specific issues, as may be 
directed by the Mayor and / or the GMCA.

  
2. Transport functions of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (‘GMCA’) 

referred to the Transport Committee  
  

2.1 The following transport functions of the GMCA are not delegated but are referred 
by the GMCA or, as the case may be, the Mayor to the Transport Committee in 
order for the Transport Committee to make recommendations (where appropriate) 
to the GMCA or, as the case may be, the Mayor in respect of:  

(a) Considering proposals by TfGM to promote or oppose any Bill in Parliament 
pursuant to Section 10(1)(xxix) of the Transport Act 1968; and

(b) Policy reviews and development on specific issues, undertaken by the Transport 
Committee on the direction of the Mayor and/or the GMCA.

Page 31



15

3.  Transport functions of the GMCA delegated to the Transport Committee  
  

3.1 The following transport functions of the GMCA are delegated by the GMCA or, as the 
case may be, the Mayor to the Transport Committee, subject to the Transport 
Committee exercising these functions in accordance with any transport policies of 
the GMCA and the Mayor, the Local Transport Plan and the agreed transport budget 
and borrowing limits (and without prejudice to the GMCA’s or, as the case may be, 
the Mayor’s right to discharge such functions directly):  

  
(a) Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM (and where 

appropriate recommending that the GMCA exercise the power pursuant to 
Section 15(6) of the Transport Act 1968 to give to TfGM such directions as 
appear to the Transport Committee to be appropriate to secure the observance 
of the rights of the GMCA);

(b) Ensuring that the TfGM secures the provision of appropriate public passenger 
transport services pursuant to Section 9A(3) of the Transport Act 1968;

(c) Considering what local bus information should be made available, and the way 
in which it should be made available pursuant to Sections 139 to143 of the 
Transport Act 2000;

(d) Ensuring that the TfGM implements those actions delegated to it for promoting 
the economic, social and environmental well-being of Greater Manchester and 
its residents pursuant to Section 99 of the Local Transport Act 2008;

(e) Monitoring performance against the Local Transport Plan and other transport 
policies of the Mayor and the GMCA;

(f) Formulating, developing and monitoring procedures for public consultation on 
the GMCA’s and the Mayor’s transport policies;

(g) Active promotion of Greater Manchester’s transport and travel interests as set 
by the GMCA and the Mayor;

  
(h) Determining the operation, performance, contract management and 

development of tendered bus services, bus stations/stops, and passenger 
transport services;

Page 32



16

(i) Determining the operation, performance and development of the GMCA’s 
accessible transport provision pursuant to Sections 106(1) and 106(2) of the 
Transport Act 1985; and

(j) Monitoring the operation and performance of Metrolink, bus and local rail 
services and initiating appropriate action, including making recommendations 
to the GMCA and/or the Mayor.

  
3.2. The following transport functions of the GMCA, which are delegated by the 

Constituent Councils to the GMCA, are sub-delegated by the GMCA to the Transport 
Committee, subject to the Transport Committee exercising these functions in 
accordance with any transport policies of the GMCA or the Mayor, the Local 
Transport Plan and the GMCA’s agreed transport budget and borrowing limits:  

  

(a) In respect of those functions:  
  

(i) under section 23 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (pedestrian 
crossings) so far as it relates to Pelican and Puffin crossings as defined by 
regulation 3(1) of the Zebra, Pelican and Puffin Crossings Regulations 1997; 
and

(ii) under section 65 (placing of traffic signs) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 so far as it relates to traffic signs that are traffic light signals where 
“traffic light signals” means a traffic sign of the size, colour and type 
prescribed by any of the following regulations of the Traffic Signs 
Regulations 2002:  

  
• Regulation 33 – Light signals for the control of vehicular traffic – standard 

form
• Regulation 34 – Green arrow light signals for the control of vehicular traffic
• Regulation 37 – Light signals for control of vehicular traffic entering or 

proceeding on motorways and all purpose dual carriageway
• Regulation 39 – Light signals to control traffic at level crossings etc.
• Regulation 41 – Light signals for the control of tramcars
• Regulation 44 – Light signals for lane control of Vehicular traffic
• Regulation 45 – Warning light signal for motorways and all-purpose dual 

carriageway roads
• Regulation 46 – Matrix signs for motorways and all purpose dual 

carriageway roads

Page 33



17

• Regulation 47 – Light signals at signal controlled  pedestrian facilities
• Regulation 48 – Light signals at equestrian crossings
• Regulation 49 – Light signals at toucan crossings
• Regulation 52 – Light signals for pedestrian traffic at level crossings  

  
the GMCA delegates to the Transport Committee responsibility for:  

  
(i) Making recommendations to the GMCA in respect of:  

• the development of policies relating to the installation, maintenance, 
and management of Traffic Light Signals that take both strategic and 
local strategies and frameworks into account; and 

 • the GMCA’s budget for Traffic Light Signals.  
  

(ii) Making arrangements for the discharge of the functions to be carried out 
in relation to Traffic Light Signals by TfGM.  

  
(iii) Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM in 

relation to the Traffic Light Signal function.  
  

(b) In respect of those functions under section 2 of the Road Traffic Reduction Act 
1997 (“the Transport Studies Function”) the GMCA delegates to the Transport 
Committee responsibility for:  

  
(i) Making recommendations to the GMCA in respect of:  
  

• producing and updating policies in respect of the Transport Studies 
Function which are consistent with the Greater Manchester Strategy, 
the GM Local Transport Plan objectives and GMCA’s and the 
Constituent Council’s budgets;

  
• settling budgets in respect of the Transport Studies Function  

  
(ii)  Making arrangements for the discharge of the functions to be  carried out 

in relation to the Transport Studies Function by TfGM.  
  
(iii) Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM in 

relation to the Transport Studies Function.
 

Page 34



18

3.3 In respect of functions under section 39 (2) and (3) of the Road Traffic Act 1988 (‘the 
road safety function’), which may be exercised concurrently with Constituent 
Councils, the GMCA delegates to the Transport Committee responsibility for: 

 
(a) Producing and developing policies in relation to the road safety function.

(b) Drawing up budgets in relation to the road safety function insofar as it is 
exercised by the TfGM. Determining the tasks to be carried out in relation to the 
road safety function by TfGM.

(c) Making recommendations to the GMCA and the Mayor in respect of the 
development of policies for the promotion and encouragement of safe transport 
to, from and within its area under s108 Transport Act 2000.

(d) Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM.

4. Transport functions of the Constituent Councils delegated directly to the 
Transport Committee  

4.1 The following transport related functions of the Constituent Councils will be 
delegated directly to the Transport Committee subject to the Transport Committee 
exercising these functions in accordance with any policies of the GMCA (as local 
transport authority), the Local Transport Plan and the terms of the delegation from 
the Constituent Councils:

(a) Carrying out actions to facilitate the performance by local traffic authorities of 
their duty to manage their road traffic on their on their own roads and facilitating 
the same on other local authorities’ roads pursuant to Sections 16 and 17 (except 
for sub-sections 17 (2) and (3)) of the Traffic Management Act 2004, including in 
particular –

(i) establishing processes for identifying things (including future occurrences) 
which are causing or have the potential to cause road congestion or other 
disruption to the movement of traffic on the road network;

(ii) determining specific policies and objectives in relation to strategic roads;

(iii) monitoring the effectiveness of traffic authorities in managing their road 
network.

(b) Preparing and carrying out a programme of measures designed to promote road 
safety, including carrying out road safety studies, studies into accidents, accident 

Page 35



19

prevention campaigns, the dissemination of information and advice relating to 
the use of roads and arranging for the giving of practical training to road users 
pursuant to Sections 39(2) and 39(3)(a) and (b) of the Road Traffic Act 1988.

 
 

1.  GM Transport Committee – Other Provisions 
 
5.1 The GM Transport Committee  may establish sub-committees. 
 
5.2 When establishing a sub-committee, the GM Transport Committee  will 

determine -  

(i) the terms of reference of the sub-committee 
(ii) the size and membership of the sub-committee 
(iii) the Chair (and Vice-Chair, if any) of the sub-committee 
(iv) any delegated powers of the sub-committee 
(v) the period (where appropriate) for which the sub-committee will                                

remain constituted. 
 

5.3 Appointments to sub-committees will be made in accordance with the principles of 
political balance set out in Section 15(5) of the LGHA 1989. 

 
5.4 The GM Transport Committee  and any sub-committee of the GM Transport 

Committee may, in respect of a function delegated to the GM Transport Committee  
by the GMCA under the GM Transport Committee Terms of Reference arrange for 
its discharge by an officer of one of the Constituent Councils or by TfGM. 

5.5 The GM Transport Committee and any sub-committee of the GM Transport 
Committee may, in respect of a Mayoral Transport Function listed in Schedule 2 of 
the GMCA Transport Order which the Mayor has delegated to the GM Transport 
Committee under the GM Transport Committee Terms of Reference arrange for its 
discharge by an officer of one of the Constituent Councils or by TfGM.

 
5.6 The GM Transport Committee and any sub-committee of the GM Transport 

Committee may, in respect of a function delegated to them by the Constituent 
Councils under the GM Transport Committee Terms of Reference, arrange for its 
discharge by an officer of one of the Constituent Councils and may enter into 
agreements with TfGM for the provision of services by TfGM. 

 
5.7 The GM Transport Committee will establish a scheme of delegation to sub-

committees and officers and will review the scheme annually. 
 

Page 36



20

5.8 The GM Transport Committee will conduct its business in accordance with this 
Agreement, including the Rules of Procedure set out in Schedule 1. 

 
6. Transport Protocols 
 
6.1 The Parties will draw up and agree detailed Protocols in relation to the operation 

and discharge of those functions –  
 

 delegated from the Constituent Councils to GMCA pursuant to Article 8 of the 
GMCA Order, and 

 delegated by the Constituent Councils to the GM Transport Committee  by virtue 
of the GM Transport Committee Terms of Reference. 

6.2 The Parties will keep the Protocols under regular review and may revise them from 
time to time, such revisions to be agreed by the Chief Executives of the Constituent 
Councils, the Head of Paid Service of the GMCA and the Chief Executive of TfGM. 

 
6.3 Protocols drawn up, agreed or revised under this Clause will not override anything 

provided for or required by this Agreement and will not in themselves constitute 
arrangements for the discharge of functions made in accordance with Section 101 of 
the LGA 1972 and the 2012 Regulations. 

 
7.  Funding of Constituent Council Transport Functions delegated by the GMCA Order 

 
7.1 For the financial year beginning on 1st April 2011, the Constituent Councils will meet 

the costs of the GMCA reasonably attributable to the exercise of those transport 
functions of the Constituent Councils delegated to the GMCA by virtue of Article 8 
of the GMCA Order. 

 
7.2 The amount payable by each of the Constituent Councils is to be determined by 

apportioning the costs of the GMCA referred to in Clause 7.1 between the 
Constituent Councils in such proportions as they may agree or, in default of 
agreement, in proportion to the total resident population on 30th June 2009 of the 
area of each council concerned as estimated by the Register General. 

 
7.3 In the financial year beginning on 1st April 2012 and in subsequent financial years the 

costs of the GMCA referred to in Clause 7.1 shall be recovered from the Constituent 
Councils as part of the levy issued to those councils pursuant to the Transport 
Levying Bodies Regulations 1992, as amended, except where and to the extent that 
all the Constituent Councils agree that costs should be defrayed by the Constituent 
Councils and not the GMCA pursuant to Article 8(4) of the GMCA Order. 

Page 37



21

 
7.4 Without prejudice to the generality of Article 8(4) of the GMCA Order, it is agreed 

that each Constituent Council will be responsible for defraying the costs of the initial 
installation of traffic signs that are traffic light signals or pelican or puffin crossings 
in their area, except insofar as such costs are met by the third parties pursuant to 
agreements under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 or otherwise. 

  
 8. Amendments to this Agreement 
 
8.1 This Agreement may be amended following a resolution approved by all the Parties. 
 
8.2 The operation of this Agreement will be subject to an annual review. 
 
9. Dispute Resolution 
 
9.1 Any dispute between the Parties arising out of this Agreement which cannot be 

settled shall be referred to the Head of Paid Service of the Parties to the dispute who 
will negotiate to resolve the matter in good faith. 

 
 10. Notices 
 
10.1 Any notice, demand or other communication required to be served on the GMCA 

under this Agreement shall be sufficiently served if delivered personally to or sent 
by pre-paid first class recorded delivery post to the GMCA’s Monitoring Officer at 
First Floor, Churchgate House, 56 Oxford Street Manchester M1 6EU If so sent, any 
such notice, demand or other communication shall, subject to proof to the contrary, 
be deemed to have been received by the GMCA’s Monitoring Officer at the time of 
personal delivery or on the second working date after the date or posting as the case 
may be. 

10.2 Any notice, demand or other communication required to be served on the Mayor 
under this Agreement shall be sufficiently served if delivered personally to or sent 
by pre-paid first class recorded delivery post or email or facsimile transmission to 
the Office of the GM Mayor at First Floor, Churchgate House, 56 Oxford Street 
Manchester  M1 6EU the Town Hall, Manchester M60 2LA.  If so sent, any such 
notice, demand or other communication shall, subject to proof to the contrary, be 
deemed to have been received by the Mayor at the time of personal delivery or on 
the second working date after the date or posting or transmission as the case may 
be.

 
10.3  Any notice, demand or other communication required to be served on one or more 

of the Constituent Councils under this Agreement shall be sufficiently served if 
delivered personally to or sent by pre-paid first class recorded delivery post to the 

Page 38



22

monitoring officer(s) of the Constituent Council(s) concerned at the principal office 
of the Constituent Council or such other address as has been notified to the Parties.  
If so sent, any such notice, demand or other communication shall, subject to proof 
to the contrary, be deemed to have been received by the Constituent Council(s) 
concerned at the time of personal delivery or on the second working date after the 
date of posting as the case may be. 

   
IN WITNESS whereof the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed the day, month 
and year first before mentioned. 
 
 
Signed by GMCA 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
Dated 
 

Signed by the GMCA Mayor 
 
  
Dated
 
Signed by The Borough Council of Bolton 
 
 
Authorised Signatory  
 
 
Dated 
 
 
Signed by Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
Dated 
 

Page 39



23

 
 
 
Signed by The Council of the City of Manchester  
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
Dated 
 
 
 
 
Signed by Oldham Borough Council 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
Dated 
 
 
 
 
Signed by Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
Dated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed by Salford City Council 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 

Page 40



24

 
Dated 
 
 
 
 
Signed by The Metropolitan Borough Council of Stockport 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
Dated 
 
 
 
 
Signed by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
Dated 
 
 
 
 
Signed by Trafford Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
Dated 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



25

 
Signed by Wigan Borough Council 
 
 
Authorised Signatory  
 
 
Dated 
 
 

 

Page 42



26

SCHEDULE 1 
 

GM Transport Committee
 

Rules of Procedure 
 
 
1. Interpretation, Suspension and Variation/Revocation of Rules of Procedure 
 
1.1 The ruling of the Chair on the interpretation of these Rules in relation to all questions 

of order and matters arising in debate shall be final. 
 
1.2 References in these Rules to the “Chair” means the member of the GM Transport 

Committee  for the time being presiding at the meeting of the GM Transport 
Committee , and a meeting of the GM Transport Committee. References in these 
Rules to the “Secretary” means the officer of the GMCA who is appointed to 
discharge the role of the Secretary to the GM Transport Committee.

 
1.3 These Rules shall apply to the GM Transport Committee  and any Sub Committee of 

the GM Transport Committee , and any reference to the GM Transport Committee 
shall accordingly include reference to a Sub Committee of theGM Transport 
Committee. 

 
1.4* Except for those provisions which accord with the provisions of the Local 

Government Acts (and which are indicated with an asterisk *) any Rule may be 
suspended at a meeting of the GM Transport Committee  with the consent of the 
majority of the whole number of members of the GM Transport Committee but not 
otherwise. 

 
1.5* These Rules (except for those Rules marked with asterisk*) may be varied or revoked 

by a decision of a two-thirds majority of the GM Transport Committee  and any 
motion to vary or revoke any of these Rules shall, when proposed and seconded, 
stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of the GM 
Transport Committee  which shall determine the matter having considered a report 
of the secretary to the GM Transport Committee on the proposed variation or 
revocation.  

 
2. Chair and Vice-Chairs 
 
2.1* The Chair of the GM Transport Committee will be appointed annually by the Mayor  

from among its members and shall, unless they resign, cease to be members of the 

Page 43



27

GM Transport Committee  or become disqualified, act until their successor becomes 
entitled to act as Chair. 

 

2.2* The appointment of the Chair, for recommendation to the Mayor shall be the first 
business transacted at the Annual Meeting of the GM Transport Committee. 

  
2.3* On a vacancy arising in the office of Chair for whatever reason, the GM Transport 

Committee shall recommend an appointment to fill the vacancy at the next ordinary 
meeting of the GM Transport Committee held after the date on which the vacancy 
occurs, or, if that meeting is held within 14 days after that date, then not later than 
the next following meeting.  The member appointed shall hold such office for the 
remainder of the year in which such vacancy occurred. 

 

3. 
 

Meetings 

3.1* 

 

The Annual Meeting of the GM Transport Committee  shall be held in June or 
the month after local elections on a date and at a time determined by the  GM 
Transport Committee. 

3.2* 

 

Ordinary meetings of the GM Transport Committee TfGMC for the transaction 
of general business shall be held on such dates and at such times as the GM 
Transport Committee shall determine. 

3.3* 

 

An Extraordinary Meeting of the GM Transport Committee may be called at any 
time by the Chair . 

4. Notice of Meetings 

Page 44



28

4.1 

 

 

At least five clear days  before a meeting of the GM Transport Committee  or 
one of its Sub Committees: 

(a) notice of the time and place of the intended meeting shall be published 
by the Secretary and posted at Churchgate House, Oxford Street, 
Manchester, M1 6EU;  and 

(b) a summons to attend the meeting, specifying an agenda for the 
meeting, shall be sent by electronic email to the usual email address of 
each member of the GM Transport Committee, or any other email 
address notified to notified to the Secretary by a member of the GM 
Transport Committee.  

4.2* 

 

Lack of service on a member of the GM Transport Committee of the summons 
shall not affect the validity of a meeting of the  GM Transport Committee. 

4.3* A member of the GM Transport Committee  may require a particular item of 
business, including any motion, which is relevant to the powers of the GM 
Transport Committee, to be discussed at an ordinary meeting of the GM 
Transport Committee  subject to at least eight clear days notice of such 
intention being given to the Secretary in writing, signed by the member 
concerned and specifying the business to be discussed.  The Secretary shall set 
out in the agenda for each meeting of the GM Transport Committee the items 
of business requested by members (if any) in the order in which they have been 
received, unless the member concerned has given prior written notice to the 
Secretary prior to the issue of the agenda for the meeting, for it to be 
withdrawn.  If the member concerned is not present at the meeting when an 
item of which they have given notice comes up for discussion, this item shall, 
unless the GM Transport Committee decides otherwise, be treated as 
withdrawn.  A member shall not have more than one item of business, or 
motion, standing in their name to be discussed at any meeting of the GM 
Transport Committee.

4.4 No motion by way of notice to rescind any resolution which has been passed within 
the preceding six months, nor any motion by way of notice to the same effect as any 
motion which has been negatived within the preceding six months, shall be in order, 
unless the notice thereof shall have been given in time for inclusion on the agenda 
for the meeting, in accordance with paragraph 4.3 above, and the notice shall have 
been signed by four other members in addition to the member who is to propose 
the motion. 

 

Page 45



29

4.5* Except in the case of business required by these Rules to be transacted at a meeting 
of the GM Transport Committee, and other business brought before the meeting as 
a matter of urgency, and of which the Secretary shall have prior notice and which 
the Chair considers should be discussed at the meeting, no business shall be 
transacted at a meeting of the GM Transport Committee other than that specified in 
the agenda for the meeting. 

 
5. Chair of Meeting 
 
5.1*     At each meeting of the GM Transport Committee  the Chair, if present, shall preside. 
 

5.2*    If the Chair is absent from a meeting of the TfGMC, the Secretary shall invite the 
members present to elect a member to preside for the duration of the meeting or 
until such time as the Chair joins the meeting. 

 
5.3 Any power or function of the Chair in relation to the conduct of a meeting shall be 

exercised by the person presiding at the meeting. 
 
6. Quorum 
 
6.1* No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the full GM Transport Committee  

unless at least  8 of the members are present). 
 

6.2* The quorum for any meeting of a Sub Committee of the GM Transport Committee  
shall be one third of the membership of that body. 

 
6.3 If at the time for which a meeting is called, and for 15 minutes thereafter, a quorum 

is not present, then no meeting shall take place. 
 

6.4 If during any meeting of the GM Transport Committee the Chair, after counting the 
number of members present, declares that there is not a quorum present, the 
meeting shall stand adjourned to a time fixed by the Chair.  If there is no quorum 
and the Chair does not fix a time for the reconvened meeting, the meeting shall 
stand adjourned to the next ordinary meeting of the GM Transport Committee. 

 
7. Order of Business 
 
7.1 At every meeting of the  GM Transport Committee the order of business shall be to 

select a person to preside if the Chair  is absent and thereafter shall be in accordance 
with the order specified in the agenda for the meeting, except that such order may 
be varied - 

Page 46



30

  
(a) by the Chair at his/her discretion, or 
(b) on a request agreed to by the GM Transport 

Committee 
 
7.2 The Chair may bring before the GM Transport Committee  at their discretion any 

matter that they consider appropriate to bring before the GM Transport Committee 
as a matter of urgency. 

 
8.         Submission of Sub Committee Proceedings 
 
8.1 Except where a Sub Committee appointed by the GM Transport Committee  is acting 

under delegated authority, the Minutes of the proceedings of each of the GM 
Transport Committee’s  Sub Committees shall be submitted to the GM Transport 
Committee for confirmation.  Confirmation by the GM Transport Committee of those 
Minutes shall constitute approval of the proceedings of those Sub Committees. 

 
8.2 The Chair of a Sub Committee, or other member of the Sub Committee acting in their 

place, shall deal with matters arising during any debate on the proceedings of the 
Sub Committee. 

 
8.3 A Chair of a Sub Committee, or other member of the Sub Committee acting in their 

place, may, with the consent of the GM Transport Committee, withdraw any item on 
the Minutes of that Sub Committee, or correct any factual inaccuracy, which might 
otherwise result in the GM Transport Committee being misinformed on any item in 
the Sub Committee’s Minutes. 

 
8.4 When considering the Minutes of the proceedings, no motion or amendment shall 

be made or proposed, or any discussion allowed upon any matter which, although 
within the province of the Sub Committee, does not appear in the Minutes of the 
proceedings. 

 
9. Rules of Debate 
 
Motions 
 
9.1 A Motion (or amendment) shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed and 

seconded.  It shall, if required by the Chair, be put in writing and handed to the Chair, 
who shall determine whether it is in order before it is further discussed or put to the 
meeting. 

 
9.2 A member when seconding a Motion or amendment may, if they then declare their 

intention to do so, reserve their speech until a later period of the debate.  No 

Page 47



31

member may, except at the discretion of the Chair, address the GM Transport 
Committee  more than once on any Motion.  The mover of the original Motion may 
reply but shall confine such reply to answering previous speakers and shall not 
introduce any new matter into the debate.  After the reply the question shall be put 
forthwith. 

 
9.3 A member when speaking shall address the Chair.  If two or more members signify 

their desire to speak, the Chair shall call on one to speak: the other or others shall 
then remain silent.  While a member is speaking no other member shall intervene 
unless to raise a point of order or by way of personal explanation. 

 
9.4 A member shall direct his/her speech to the question under discussion or to a 

personal explanation or to a point of order.   No speech shall exceed five minutes 
except by consent of the Chair. 

 
Amendments to Motions 

 
9.5 An amendment shall be relevant to the Motion and shall be either:- 
 

(a) to refer a subject of debate to a Sub Committee for consideration or 
reconsideration: or 

(b) (i) to leave out words from the Motion
(ii) to leave out words from, and insert or add others to, the Motion: 
(iii) to insert words in, or add words to, the Motion: 

  
but such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the effect of 
negating the Motion before the GM Transport Committee. 

 
9.6 Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at a time and no further 

amendment shall be moved until the amendment under discussion has been 
disposed of.  The mover of an amendment shall read the same before speaking to it. 

 
9.7 If an amendment is negated, other amendments may be moved on the original 

Motion.  If an amendment is carried, the Motion as amended shall take the place of 
the original Motion and shall become the substantive Motion upon which any further 
amendment may be moved, except any amendment which would be inconsistent 
with that already carried.  The right of reply under paragraph 9.2 above shall not 
extend to the mover of an amendment which, having been carried, has become the 
substantive Motion.  No member shall move more than one amendment on any 
Motion. 

 
9.8 A member may, with the consent of the GM Transport Committee, signified without 

Page 48



32

discussion:- 
  

(a) alter a Motion of which they have given notice
(b) with the consent of their seconder alter a Motion which they have moved: 

 
if in either case the alteration is one which could be made as an amendment thereto. 

 
9.9 A Motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the mover with the consent of the 

GM Transport Committee (which shall be signified without discussion) and no 
member may speak upon it after the mover has asked permission for its withdrawal, 
unless such permission has been refused. 

 
9.10 When a Motion is under debate no other Motion shall be moved except the 

following:- 
 

(a) That the Motion be amended 
(b) That the GM Transport Committee  proceed to the next business 
(c) That the question be put 
(d) That the debate be adjourned 
(e) That the meeting be adjourned 
(f) That the member named be warned 
(g) (By the Chair under paragraph 11.2 below) That the member named leave 

the meeting, or 
(h) That the press and public be excluded (in accordance with Section 100A of 

the Local Government Act, 1972)
 
9.11 A member who has not already spoken on the item under consideration may move 

without comment at the conclusion of a speech of another member “That the GM 
Transport Committee proceed to the next business”, “That the question be put”, 
“That the debate be adjourned” or “That this meeting of the GM Transport 
Committee be adjourned” and on the seconding of that Motion the Chair shall 
proceed as follows: 

 
(a) on a Motion to proceed to the next business, unless in their opinion the 

original Motion or amendment has been insufficiently discussed, they shall 
first give the mover of the original Motion a right of reply, and then put to 
the vote the Motion to proceed to the next business; if this latter Motion is 
carried, the original Motion or amendment under discussion shall be deemed 
to be withdrawn

(b) on a Motion that the question be put, unless in their opinion the Motion or 
amendment before the meeting has not been sufficiently discussed, they 

Page 49



33

shall first put to the vote the Motion that the question be put and, if it is 
carried, they shall then give the mover of the original Motion their right of 
reply under paragraph 9.2 above, before putting the Motion or any 
amendment then under discussion to the vote 

(c) on a Motion to adjourn the debate, if, in the Chair’s opinion, the Motion or 
amendment before the meeting has not been sufficiently discussed, and 
cannot reasonably be sufficiently discussed on that occasion, they shall put 
to the vote a Motion to adjourn the debate to the next meeting of the GM 
Transport Committee, or to a time stated, without giving the mover of the 
original Motion their right of reply on that occasion; if the adjournment 
Motion is carried, then, on the resumption of the debate, the Chair shall 
reintroduce the Motion or amendment before the meeting at the time the 
debate was adjourned, and the member who moved the adjournment of the 
debate shall be entitled to speak first

(d) on a Motion to adjourn a meeting of the GM Transport Committee  until a 
specified date and time, the Chair shall forthwith put such a Motion to the 
vote without giving any right of reply to the mover of any Motion under 
discussion and, if the Motion is carried, the remaining business of the day 
shall stand adjourned until the date and time stated in the Motion.  On the 
resumption of the meeting of the GM Transport Committee the procedure in 
paragraph 9.11(c) above shall apply

 
9.12 No member may move any of the Motions in paragraph 9.11 above on more than 

one occasion at each meeting and, when such a Motion is not carried, a second 
Motion of the like nature shall not be made within half an hour unless, in the opinion 
of the Chair, the circumstances of the question are materially altered. 

 
Points of Order 
 
9.13 A member may, with the permission of the Chair, raise a point of order or in personal 

explanation, and shall be entitled to be heard forthwith.  A point of order shall relate 
only to an alleged breach of the Rules of Procedure or statutory provision and the 
member shall specify which part of the Rules of Procedure or statutory provision and 
the way in which they consider it has been broken.  A personal explanation shall be 
confined to some material part of a former speech by the member which they 
consider to have been misunderstood in the present debate. 

 
9.14 The ruling of the Chair on a point of order, or the admissibility of a personal 

explanation, shall not be open to discussion. 
 

Page 50



34

9.15 Whenever the Chair intervenes during a debate a member then speaking or offering 
to speak shall give way. 

 
Motion to exclude the Press and Public 
 
9.16 A Motion to exclude the press and public in accordance with Section 100A of the 

Local Government Act, 1972 may be moved, without notice, at any meeting of the 
GM Transport Committee during an item of business whenever it is likely that if 
members of the public were present during that item there would be disclosure to 
them of confidential or exempt information as defined in Section 100A of the 1972 
Act. 

10. Voting 
 
10.1 Whenever a vote is taken at meetings of the GM Transport Committee  it shall be by 

a show of hands.  On the requisition of any member of the GM Transport Committee, 
supported by four other members who signify their support by rising in their places, 
and before the vote is taken, the voting on any question shall be recorded so as to 
show whether each member present gave their vote for or against that question or 
abstained from voting. 

10.2* In the case of an equality of votes, the Chair shall have a second, or casting, vote. 

10.3* A member may demand that his/her vote be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting. 
 
11. Conduct of Members at meetings 
 
11.1 If at a meeting any member of the GM Transport Committee, misconducts him or 

herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chair, or by behaving irregularly, 
improperly or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of the GM Transport 
Committee, the Chair or any other member may move “That the member named be 
warned” and the Motion if seconded shall be put and determined without 
discussion. 

 
11.2 If the member named continues such misconduct after a Motion under the foregoing 

paragraph has been carried, the Chair shall either:- 
 

(a) move “That the member named leave the meeting” (in which case the 
Motion shall be put and determined without seconding or discussion)

(b) adjourn the meeting of the GM Transport Committee for such period as they 
consider expedient

 

Page 51



35

11.3 In the event of general disturbance, which in the opinion of the Chair, renders the 
due and orderly dispatch of business impossible the Chair, in addition to any other 
power vested in him or her may, without question put, adjourn the meeting of the 
GM Transport Committee  for such period as he or she considers expedient. 

 
12. Disturbance by Members of the Public 
 
12.1 If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting the Chair shall 

warn him or her.  If they continue the interruption the Chair shall order his or her 
removal from the room.  In the case of general disturbance in any part of the room 
open to the public the Chair shall order that part to be cleared. 

13. Interests of Members 
 
13.1* A member must have regard to the Code of Conduct for Members of the local 

authority for which they are an elected member and their obligations 
in relation to the disclosures of, and possible withdrawal from a meeting, for reason 
of personal and prejudicial interests. 

 
14. Appointment of Sub Committees 
 
14.1 The GM Transport Committee shall at the Annual Meeting appoint such Sub 

Committees as it has at that, or any earlier meeting, resolved to establish; may, at 
any time, appoint such other Sub Committees as are necessary to carry out the work 
of the GM Transport Committee; and may, at any time, dissolve a Sub Committee or 
alter its membership. 

 
14.2 The terms of reference of Sub Committees shall be approved by the GM Transport 

Committee  and shall be subject to review at each Annual Meeting. 
 

14.3 The GM Transport Committee  shall at each Annual Meeting, or whenever there is a 
vacancy in such office, appoint the Chair of each Sub Committee. 

 
14.4 The GM Transport Committee may at any time remove a member from the office of 

a Sub Committee and appoint another member to fill the resultant vacancy. 
 

14.5 A member may resign from the office of Chair of a Sub Committee by notice in 
writing delivered to the Secretary, the resignation to take effect from the time of 
receipt of such notice. 

  
14.6 Wherever possible, a programme of dates and times of Sub Committee meetings 

for the ensuing year shall be approved at the Annual Meeting of the GM Transport 
Committee, or, on the first appointment of a Sub Committee, at any other meeting 

Page 52



36

of the GM Transport Committee.  Such a programme shall, however, be capable of 
variation by the GM Transport Committee, and, in case of urgency, by the Chair of 
the Sub Committee. 

 
14.7  GM Transport Committee  members may attend a meeting of any Sub Committee 

of which they are not a member, but shall not, without the consent of the Chair, 
take part in any proceedings. They shall not, in any event, move any Motion or 
amendment, or vote at such a meeting.  Such members may attend a Sub 
Committee meeting during consideration of any business indicated on the agenda 
as likely to be considered when the public have been excluded, provided advance 
written notice has been given to the Secretary of the member’s intention to attend 
for the discussion of such business, and his or her reasons for so doing. 

 
14.8 A member of the GM Transport Committee who has moved a Motion that has been 

referred to any Sub Committee shall have notice of the meeting of the Sub 
Committee at which it is proposed to consider the Motion.  They shall have the 
right to attend the meeting and if the member attends, they shall be afforded an 
opportunity of explaining the Motion. 

 
15. Publication of Reports 
 
15.1* Reports or other documents for the consideration of the GM Transport Committee 

or a Sub Committee shall be marked “Private & Confidential Not for Publication” only 
if the Secretary, as Proper Officer under Section 100B(2) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 determines that this should be done on one or more of the grounds 
specified in the Act. 

 
15.2 A Member of the GM Transport Committee  or a member of the public may request 

that an item of business containing exempt information should be taken in public 
and such a request should be dealt with by the meeting at which the item is to be 
considered in private as the first item on the agenda.   The procedure for dealing 
with such requests is set out in Rules 16 and 17 below. 

 
15.3* Copies of the agenda of meetings of the GM Transport Committee  or its Sub 

Committees, including prints of reports or other documents to be submitted to the 
GM Transport Committee or Sub Committees (other than reports or other 
documents marked “Not for Publication”) shall be furnished prior to the meeting to 
representatives of the press, radio and television and shall also be furnished at the 
meeting to members of the public attending such meetings.  Such documents shall 
also be made available for public inspection, at least five clear days before any 
meeting, at Churchgate House, Oxford Street, the Town Hall, Manchester, M1 6EU. 

 

Page 53



37

15.4* Where an item or report has been added to an agenda, any revised agenda or 
additional report shall be available for public inspection as soon as the item or report 
has been added to the agenda, provided copies are also, at that time, available to 
members of the . 

 
16. Access to Information Procedure Rules 
 
16.1 Except as otherwise indicated, these rules apply to all meetings of the GM Transport 

Committee and its Sub Committees. 

 
16.2 The Rules in Section 16 do not affect any more specific rights to information 

contained elsewhere in these Rules of Procedure or the law. 
 
16.3 The GM Transport Committee  will supply copies of: 
 

(a) any agenda and reports that are open to public inspection
(b) any further statements or particulars, if any, as are necessary to indicate the 

nature of the items in the agend
(c) if the Secretary thinks fit, copies of any other documents supplied to 

members in connection with an item 
 (d) to any person on payment of a charge for postage and any other costs. 
 
16.4 The GM Transport Committee  will make available copies of the following for six 

years after a meeting: 
 

(a) the minutes of the meeting, excluding any part of the minutes of proceedings 
when the meeting was not open to the public or which disclose exempt or 
confidential information

(b) a summary of any proceedings not open to the public where the minutes 
open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and coherent record; 

(c) the agenda for the meeting
(d) reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public
 

16.5 The relevant Chief Officer will set out in every report a list of those documents (called 
background papers) relating to the subject matter of the report that in his/her 
opinion: 

 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based

Page 54



38

(b) which have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report but 
does not include published works or those which disclose exempt or 
confidential information

 

17. Exclusion of access by the public to meetings 
  
 (a) Confidential information – requirement to exclude public 
 
17.1 The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature 

of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that confidential 
information would be disclosed. 

 
17.2 Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or 

adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act establishes a 
presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private hearing is 
necessary for one of the reasons stated in Article 6. 

 
 (b) Meaning of confidential information 
 
17.3 Confidential information means information given to the GM Transport Committee  

by a Government department on terms that forbid its public disclosure or 
information that cannot be publicly disclosed by reason of a Court Order or any 
enactment. 

 
 (c) Meaning of exempt information 
 
17.4 Exempt information means information falling within the following categories 

(subject to any qualifications): 

 
(i) information relating to any individual
(ii) information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual

(iii) information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)

(iv) information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 
consultations or negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter 
arising between the GM Transport Committee or a Minister of the Crown and 
employees of, or office holders under, the GM Transport Committee

Page 55



39

(v) information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings

(vi) information which reveals that the GM Transport Committee proposes a) to 
give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements 
are imposed on a person; or b) to make an order or direction under any 
enactment 

(vii) information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with 
the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime 

 

(e) Exclusion of Access by the public to reports 
 

17.5 If the Secretary thinks fit, the GM Transport Committee may exclude access by the 
public to reports which in his/her opinion relate to items during which the meeting 
is likely not to be open to the public.  Such reports will be marked “Not for 
Publication” together with the category of information likely to be disclosed. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 56



40

Page 57



Report to Council

Date of Meeting 22nd May 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document Public 

Council Appointments 2019/20

Executive Summary

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The Council appoints to a number of Committees/Sub-Committees each year 
as part of its corporate governance arrangements in support of the democratic 
process and decision-making arrangements. Members who are appointed to 
these bodies will be expected to have received appropriate 
development/training to enable them to carry out their roles effectively on 
whichever body they serve.

In accordance with the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups)
Regulations 1990, the Council has reviewed its political balance.

Nominations are required to Committees discharge Council functions and the 
appointment of Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2019/20 Municipal Year.

Nominations are required to serve on the Boards, Partner Organisations, 
Management Committees of Voluntary Organisations, Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority and other External Bodies for the 2019/20 Municipal Year.

A delegation to the Leader of the Council is required to determine the 
Council’s nominations to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority

Recommendation

2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

That approval be given to the nominations to Committees as set out in 
appendix 1 of the report.

That approval be given to the appointment of Chairs and Vice Chairs of each
Committee, as set out in appendix 1 of the report.

That approval be given to the nominations to the other council bodies as set 
out in appendix 2 of the report.

That approval be given to the nominations of Joint Committees as set out in 

Page 58

Agenda Item 10



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

appendix 3 of the report.

That approval be given to the appointment of outside bodies, as set out at 
appendix 4 of the report.

That the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the relevant Group Leader, be 
authorised to make and confirm any amendments or additions in relation to                    
the above appointments.

That approval be given to the appointments or nominations required to 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) bodies for the 2019/20 
Municipal Year as set out in appendix 5 of the report.

That the Leader of the Council, in consultation with the respective Group
Leader where minority group appointments or nominations are required, be 
granted delegated authority to appoint or nominate to GMCA or AGMA bodies 
which may arise throughout the 2019/20 Municipal Year

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

To ensure that the composition of the Council’s committees reflects the 
political balance of the Council.

To reflect the wishes of political groups and make allocations to non-grouped 
councillors in making appointments to committees in accordance with the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government 
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990. 

It is a function of Council to appoint to the Boards, Partner Organisations,
Management Committees of Voluntary Organisations and other External
Bodies as detailed within appendix 2 of the report. 

The Council is required to nominate to various GMCA posts.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

For the purposes only of the allocation of seats to different political groups the
following statutory principles apply:

A political group must comprise at least six members;
 All the seats are not allocated to the same political group;
 The majority of the seats go to the political group with a majority on the 

full Council;
 Subject to the above two principles, that the number of seats on the 

total of all the ordinary Committees of the Authority allocated to each 
political group bears the same proportion to the proportion on the full 
Council;

 Subject to the above principles, that the number of seats on each 
ordinary Committee of the Authority allocated to each political group 
bears the same proportion to the proportion on the full Council.

Page 59



4.2 After applying the calculation, the political balance and associated Committee 
seats have been calculated as follows

 Labour are eligible for 58 seats.
 Conservative are eligible for 11 seats.
 Liberal Democrats are eligible for 5 seats

LAB CON LD
Total Seats 47 9 4 
Overall % 78.33% 15.00% 6.67%

Places 
Available

Total 74 57.97 11.10 4.93 
Communities Regen and Env 11 8.62 8.00 1.65 2.00 0.73 1.00 
Corporate O&S 11 8.62 9.00 1.65 1.00 0.73 1.00 
Health Schools and Care O&S 11 8.62 8.00 1.65 2.00 0.73 1.00 

Audit & Governance 9 7.05 8.00 1.35 
      

1.00 0.60 1.00 
Planning & Licensing 15 11.75 12.00 2.25 2.00 1.00 1.00 
Charitable Trust Committee 5 3.92 4.00 0.75 1.00 0.33 0.00 
Chief Officer Employment Committee 5 3.92 4.00 0.75 1.00 0.33 0.00 
Disputes Committee 7 5.48 6.00 1.05 1.00 0.47 0.00 

 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0 57.97 58.00 11.10 11.00 4.93 5.00 

Total Seats 58.00 11.00 5.00 

The regulations do not apply to Township Committees, where membership is 
based on electoral wards. 

Alternatives considered

There were no alternatives considered

Costs and Budget Summary

5. . The Members Allowance Scheme as approved by Council on 14 
December 2016 identifies a number of special responsibility 
allowances as follows:

Page 60



Position Special Responsibility 
Allowance (£)

Total (£)

Chairs (x3) of 
Overview
and Scrutiny
Committees

8,155 24,465

Chair of Audit &
Governance 
Committee

6,524 6,524

Chair of Planning &
Licensing Committee

10,873 10,873

Chairs (x 5) of 
Township
committees

8,155 40,775

These allowances will be met from within existing budgets.

Risk and Policy Implications

Should Committees not be formally constituted, there is a risk to the 
legitimacy of the Council’s decision making processes.

6.

Consultation

7. The Group Leaders have been consulted in compiling the report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers Not applicable

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson – 01706 924715 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 61

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

TOWNSHIP COMMITTEES

Heywood Township to be comprised of all Members from the following Wards:

 North Heywood
 West Heywood
 Hopwood Hall

Chair:  Peter Rush

Vice Chair:  Ray Dutton

Middleton Township to be comprised of all of the Members from the following Wards:

 East Middleton
 North Middleton
 South Middleton
 West Middleton
 Hopwood Hall 

Chair: Donna Williams

Vice Chair: Susan Smith

Pennines Township to be comprised of all of the Members from the following Wards:

 Littleborough Lakeside
 Milnrow and Newhey
 Wardle and West Littleborough
 Smallbridge and Firgrove

Chair:  Amna Mir

Vice Chair: Tom Besford

Rochdale North Township to be comprised of all of the Members from the following 
wards

Central Rochdale
Healey
Norden
Spotland & Falinge 

Chair: Shaun O’Neill

Vice Chair: Wendy Cocks

Page 62



Rochdale South Township to be comprised of all of the Members from the following 
wards

Balderstone & Kirkholt
Bamford
Castleton
Kingsway
Milkstone & Deeplish

Chair: Mohammed Zaman

Vice Chair: Elsie Wraighte

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Conservative (2) 

A Smith Winkler

Labour (8)

Besford Meredith

Beswick West

Robinson P Williams 

S Emmott Zaheer

Liberal Democrat (1)

Kelly

Chair (Labour) –  Meredith

Vice Chair (Conservative) –  A Smith

Page 63



Health, Schools and Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Conservative (2) 

Gartside Sullivan

Labour (8) 

Liberal Democrat (1)

Non-Elected Voting Members (voting rights in relation to education decisions 
only): 

Church Representatives (two vacancies) 

Parent Governor Representatives (two vacancies)

Chair (Labour) –  Dutton

Vice Chair (Conservative) –  Sullivan

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Conservative (1) 

Holly

Labour (9) 

S Ali Nolan
Boriss O’Neill
Joinson O’Rourke
Mir Wraighte
Rana

Liberal Democrats (1)

Bamford

Chair (Conservative) – Holly Vice Chair (Labour) – O’Neill

S Ali Hornby
Dale McCarthy
Dutton, Massey
Hartley S Smith

Davidson

Page 64



Audit and Governance Committee

9 elected Members

Conservative (1)  

Gartside

Labour (7) 

A Ahmed Hussain
Dale Rashid
Martin D Williams
Malcolm

Liberal Democrat (1)

Nickson

Independent Persons (non-voting) (in respect of Elected Member conduct 
issues):  

To be appointed

Independent Members x2 

to be appointed

Chair –  Malcolm

Vice Chair –  Rashid

 

Page 65



Planning and Licensing Committee

 Conservative  (2) 

Taylor Winkler

Labour  (12): 

S Ahmed Rana
Cocks Rashid
Burke Rush
S Emmott Wazir
Massey Zaheer
O’Neill Zaman

Liberal Democrats (1)

Davidson

Chair –  S Ahmed

Vice Chair –  Burke

Licensing Sub-Committee

Comprises three Members drawn from the full membership of the Planning and 
Licensing Committee to be appointed as the meeting is required to meet.  Chair to be 
appointed at the meeting of the Sub-Committee.

 

Charitable Trustee Committee

Conservative (1)  

Holly

Labour  (4)

A Ahmed O’Neill
Besford Zaheer

Chair – O’Neill

Vice Chair – to be appointed at the first meeting

Page 66



Strategic Place Board

 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Health/Public Health
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Children’s Services
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Adult Care
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Finance 
 Leader of the Conservative Group
 Chief Executive
 the Director of Adult Social Services for the local authority
 the Director of Children's Services for the local authority
 the Director of Public Health for the local authority
 a representative of the local Healthwatch organisation for the Borough
 a representative of the Clinical Commissioning Group
 such other persons, or representatives of such other persons, as the Board or 

the local authority after consulting the Board thinks appropriate
o A member of the Citizens’ Panel
o CVS
o GMP 
o GM Fire & Rescue Service
o National Probation Service
o DWP
o Further/Higher Education Sector
o Housing 

Statutory requirement – at least one elected member; the Directors of Adult Social 
Services, Children's Services and Public Health for the local authority; at least one 
representative of the Clinical Commissioning Group (currently Dr Chris Duffy; Simon 
Wootton and Dr Bodrum Alam); representative of Healthwatch (currently Jane 
Jackson); and (for certain business) representative of NHS England. 

Integrated Commissioning Board 

(Sub-Committee of the Strategic Place Board)

To note the Council membership – 

 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Health/Public Health
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Children’s Services
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Adult Care
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Finance

Officers to attend
 the Director of Adult Care 
 the Director of Children's Services 
 the Director of Public Health 
 the Director of Resources
 the Chief Executive

Page 67



The balance of the Board membership appointed by the Clinical Commissioning 
Group.

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 2019/20

Conservative 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee (2)

Howard Taylor

Health, Children and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (2)

Paolucci Smith

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (1)

Dearnley

Charitable Trustee Committee (1) 

Dearnley

Labour 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee (3)

Joinson Rana
Hartley

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (3)

Nolan  Wraighte
O’Neill

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (3)

 Besford  D Williams
 A Hussain

Charitable Trustee Committee (3) 

S Ali O’Rourke
Farnell

Liberal Democrat

Page 68



Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee (1)

Bamfford

Health, Children and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (1)

Kelly

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (1)

Davidson

Page 69



Appendix 2

APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER COUNCIL BODIES

Voluntary Sector Partnership

Party Leaders  
Emsley 

Corporate Parenting Board

 Cabinet Member for Children’s Services (Chair)
 Cabinet Member for Adult Care
 Cabinet Member for Housing
 Opposition Spokesperson for Children, Schools and Families
 Assistant to the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services
 Representative to the Fostering Panel (Councillor Hornby)

Democratic Structures Working Group (7 Members 6 Lab 1 Cons)

Councillors D Ali, Brett, N Emmott, Rowbotham, Martin, O’Rourke, Paolucci

Social Services Complaints Review Panel: 

Cabinet Members for Health, Social Care and Children’s Services

Adoption Panel 1x Lab 1 x Cons

Heakin  Sullivan

Fostering Panel 

Councillor Hornby

Page 70



Appendix 3

JOINT COMMITTEES

Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust

Dutton Sullivan
Robinson

Substitutes
S Smith Dearnley

Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust

Dale S Smith
Howard 

       
Substitutes

Cocks Dearnley

Joint Committee for Strategic Procurement (STAR)

D Ali
 Portfolio holder

 Substitute 

Brett

Page 71



APPENDIX 4
APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

Local Government Association – Leader and Deputy Leaders, Councillor 
Dearnley

Rochdale Development Agency – Councillor Blundell, Councillor Dearnley and 
the Chief Executive

Healey Dell Joint Management Committee – Councillors Heakin, O’Neil and 
Wazir

Business Improvement District (BID) Board – Council leader (by qualification)

East Lancashire Railway Trust - Councillor Dutton and two further 
appointments by the Heywood Township Committee

Heritage Trust – North West – Councillor Emsley

Ring & Ride Steering Group – Councillor Cocks

Groundwork Trust for Rochdale and Oldham - Councillors West and Besford

GM Fire Trust – Cllr O’Neill

Rochdale Shopmobility Executive Committee – Councillor Cocks and 
Councillor Gartside

North West Regional Association of Education Authorities – Councillor 
Heakin

University of Salford Court – Councillor Heakin

DVAW Inter-Agency Working Party – Councillor Robinson

North West Local Authorities Employers Organisation – Councillor D Ali and 
Councillor Hartley 

Rochdale Community Legal Service Partnership – Councillor West and 
Councillor Gartside

Reserve Forces and Cadets Association – Councillor Emsley

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Board Representative Committee - 
Councillors Cocks, Daalat Ali, Linda Robinson, Sultan Ali

Board of the Leisure Trust (Link4Life) - Councillors Rush, Zaheer and 
Paolucci-Escobar

Rochdale Chamber of Commerce Local Council –Councillor Cocks

Page 72



Rochdale Borough Multi-Agency Racial Harassment Forum – Councillor S 
Smith

The Joint Committee of England and Wales for the Civil Enforcement of 
Parking and Traffic Regulations – Councillor Neil Emmott

Pennines Prospects Board – Councillor Hartley

Greater Manchester Forest Partnership – Councillor Besford

Calder Valley Development Group – Councillor Hartley

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – relevant Portfolio Holder, 
Assistant to the Cabinet Member and opposition Portfolio Holders (Councillor 
Taylor) to serve on the Partnership

Children & Young People’s Partnership - Relevant Portfolio Holder, 
Assistants to the Cabinet Member and opposition Portfolio Holders (Councillor 
Sullivan) to serve on the Partnership.

Rochdale Housing Initiative – Cabinet Member with responsibility for Housing 
(Councillor Wardle)

Page 73



1

Appendix 5

GMCA & AGMA Nominations and Appointments  - Local Authority 2019/20

GMCA Nominations and Appointments  2019/20

Body Nominations 
Required

Length of Term Meeting 
requirements

Notes To be completed by 
Democratic Services 

Managers - LA 
Information

GM Combined 
Authority 

10 members - 1  to 
be appointed by  
each  LA

Plus 1 substitute 
member from 
each LA

Plus GM Mayor

1 year Monthly Councillor Brett

Councillor Rowbotham 
Substitute

GM Waste & 
Recycling 
Committee

2 nominations 
from each LA (with 
the exception of 
Wigan).

GMCA to agree 
final membership 

Up to 30 April 
2019

The Committee will 
have 15 members to 
ensure political 
proportionality and 
gender balance.

Chair of the Committee 
to be agreed by the 
GMCA following 
recommendation from 
the Waste & Recycling 
Committee.

Councillor Tom Besford, 
Susan Emmott

GMCA Audit 
Committee

4  members 
(cannot be 

Up to 30 April 
2019

Quarterly Cannot be Leaders Nominate Councillor 
Peter Malcolm

P
age 74



2

Leaders) & 2 
Substitute 
members invited 
from across GM 
nominated by the 
LAs, if they wish to 
do so.

GMCA to agree 
final membership 

GM Political Balance 
rules apply

Plus 2 Independent 
persons

GM Transport 
Cttee (formerly 
TfGMC) 

*11 Members  - 1 
member from 
each LA (2 from 
Manchester) 

Up to 30 April 
2019

To be 
confirmed

*Appointment process 
subject to separate 
report, which includes 
Terms of Reference & 
Operating Agreement  
to be considered by the 
GM LAs Annual 
meetings in May 2019

The Committee will 
have 23 members to 
ensure political 
proportionality and 
gender balance.

Councillor Phil Burke

Councillor Shah Wazir 
(substitute)

GM Culture & 
Social Impact 
Fund Cttee

10 Members  - 1 
member from 
each LA, invited 
from across GM, 
plus 1 substitute 
member from 
each LA

GMCA to agree 
final membership

Up to 30 April 
2019

X2 per year *recommend 
membership to 
replicate the AGMA 
Statutory Functions 
Cttee

Councillor Janet Emsley

Councillor Susan Smith 
(Substitute)

Health & Social 10 members – 1 Councillor Sara 

P
age 75



3

Care Partnership 
Board

member to be 
appointed by each 
LA 

Plus 1 substitute 
from each LA

Rowbotham

Councillor Wendy Cocks 
(Substitute)

Health & Social 
Care -  Joint 
Commissioning 
Board

10 members – 1 
member to be 
appointed by each 
LA 

Those appointed 
to appoint their 
own deputies

Bi-monthly *Those appointed to 
appoint their own 
deputies

Councillor Sara 
Rowbotham

Transport for the 
North – Scrutiny 
Committee

1 member & 1 
substitute 
member invited 
from across GM, 
nominated by the 
LAs, if they wish to 
do so.

To be appointed 
by the GMCA

Councillor John Blundell

Councillor Elsie Wraighte 
(Substitute)

GMCA Overview 
& Scrutiny 
Committees 

Each LA is 
requested to make 
6 nominations – 
*See Notes

GMCA to agree 
final membership 

Up to 30 April 
2019

Monthly * Process for 
appointments 
previously circulated by 
Nicola Ward on 4 April 
2019

*4 of these 
nominations should be 
from the ruling group 
and 2 from the major 
opposition group, 

On separate Sheet

P
age 76



4

except where there is a 
hung council (or no 
opposition group). 
Districts with a three 
way hung council are 
expected to be 
politically inclusive in 
their nominations.

NW European 
Programmes Local 
Management  
Committee

Nominations no 
longer required  

*Disestablished

NW Regional 
Flood and Coastal 
Committee

3 members invited 
from across GM,  
nominated by the 
LAs, if they wish to 
do so, those 
appointed to 
appoint their own 
deputies

GMCA to agree 
final membership 

Up to 30 April 
2019

Quarterly *Those appointed to 
appoint their own 
deputies

Nominate Councillor Neill 
Emmott

P
age 77



5

AGMA Nominations and Appointments 2019/20

Body Nominations 
Required

Length of Term Meeting 
Requirements

Notes To Be Completed by 
Democratic Services 

Managers – LA 
Information

AGMA Executive 
Board

9 Leaders, 1 City 
Mayor of Salford, 
(plus GM Mayor) to 
be appointed by the 
LA
Plus 2 substitutes 
from each LA

1 year As and when 
required

Councillor Allen Brett

Councillor Sara 
Rowbotham
Councillor Daalat Ali 
(Substitutes)

Statutory 
Functions 
Committee

10 members ( 1 per 
Authority invited 
from across GM to 
be appointed by the 
LA 

Plus 1 substitute 
member from each 
LA

Up to 30 April 
2019

X2 per year *recommend 
membership to 
replicate the GM 
Culture & Social Impact 
Fund Cttee

Councillor Janet Emsley

Councillor Susan Smith 
(Substitute)

Police and Crime 
Panel

10 members ( 1 per 
Authority (cannot 
be Leaders) invited 
from across GM to 
be appointed by the 
LA 

1 year At least 3 times 
per year

Cannot be Leaders

Plus 2 Independent 
members 

Councillor Janet Emsley

Police & Crime 
Steering Group

10 members ( 1 per 
Authority ( cannot 
be Leaders) invited 
from across GM to 

Councillor Janet Emsley

P
age 78



6

be appointed by the 
LA 

GM Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

10 members (1 per 
Authority) invited 
from across GM to 
be appointed by the 
LA 

Plus 1 substitute 
from each LA, to be 
non-
Executive/Cabinet 
members from 
respective LA.

1 year Quarterly Chairs of Health 
Scrutiny or scrutiny 
members ideally (must 
be non- 
Executive/Cabinet 
Members)

GM Political Balance 
rules apply

Councillor Ray Dutton

Councillor Patricia 
Sullivan (Substitute)

Planning and 
Housing 
Commission

10 members (1 per 
Authority) invited 
from across GM to 
be appointed by the 
LA 

AGMA Executive to 
agree final 
membership 

Up to 30 April 
2019

Quarterly Members to be drawn 
from LA Planning & 
Housing portfolio 
holders

GM Political Balance 
rules apply

Plus Leader portfolio 
holder for Planning & 
Housing

Councillor Linda 
Robinson

GM Pensions 
Fund 
Management 
Panel

10 members (1 per 
Authority) invited 
from across GM to 
be appointed by the 
LA 

AGMA Executive to 
agree final 
membership

1 year Quarterly 

Sub-groups 
may also 
require 
attendance 
(there are four)

In previous years 
members have been 
drawn from LA Lead 
Executive members

Councillor Shaun O’Neill

Halle 1 member invited 1 year Nominate Councillor 

P
age 79



7

from  across GM 
nominated by the 
LAs, if they wish to 
do so,  to be 
appointed by 
AGMA Executive

Janet Emsley

Peoples History 
Museum

1 member invited 
from  across GM 
nominated by the 
LAs, if they wish to 
do so,  to be 
appointed by 
AGMA Executive

1 year Quarterly Charity Trustee role

Christie Hospital 
NHS foundation 
Trust

1 member invited 
from  across GM 
nominated by the 
LAs, if they wish to 
do so,  to be 
appointed by 
AGMA Executive

3 years Council of Governors

 

P
age 80


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	7 Cabinet Portfolios and Responsibilities 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Cabinet Portfolios and Responsibilities 2019/20

	8 Appointment of Shadow Portfolio Holder 2019/20
	9 Greater Manchester Transport Committee - Roles and Responsibilities
	Append. 1 for Greater Manchester Transport Committee - Roles and Responsibilities

	10 Council Appointments 2019/20
	Final committee osb appointments 2019
	GMCA nominations - all committees


